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Strategic report
Strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2019
The directors present their strategic report on AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Ownership
The AI Wertheimer Holdings Group is owned by funds containing institutional owners and is controlled by funds
advised by Advent International Corporation, a private equity investment company.
Advent International Corporation ("Advent") is one of the largest and most experienced global private equity firms.
With offices on four continents, Advent has established a globally integrated team of more than 220 investment
professionals, focused on buyouts and growth equity investments in five core sectors. Since beginning its private
equity strategy in 1989, Advent has invested $50 billion in over 355 private equity investments across 41 countries,
and as of 31 March 2020, managed $48 billion in assets. For more than 30 years Advent International has sought to
invest in well-positioned companies and partner with management teams to create value through sustained revenue and
earnings growth.
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited is the ultimate parent company of the Williams Lea Tag Group. The board that
directs and controls the Group operates at the level of a subsidiary company, Wertheimer UK Limited.
History of the Group
The Williams Lea Tag business began in 1820 when Wertheimer Lea was established to supply print to the financial
sector.
In 2006 Deutsche Post DHL Group acquired the Williams Lea Group enhancing its global reach. By November 2017
and following the acquisition of Tag Worldwide in 2011, the Williams Lea Tag Group was a single global business,
delivering integrated marketing and communications services and offering business process outsourcing to large
companies.
In November 2017, AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited and its Williams Lea Tag subsidiaries were acquired by funds
advised by Advent International Corporation.
Business model
The Williams Lea Tag Group is a global provider of marketing production and skilled business-critical support
services worldwide. The Group comprises two strategic business units, Williams Lea and Tag.
Today we share one purpose: to create value for our clients by working smarter with fewer resources, enhancing
efficiencies, improving their customers’ experience and strengthening their brand reputation. Our clients and their
customers have always been at the heart of everything we do. Our long-term partnerships, great relationships,
exceptional employees and leading technology have been the driving force behind our success.
Williams Lea is a global provider of skilled business-critical support services to financial, legal and professional
services firms. From our humble beginnings as a print shop in London, to our position today as a global outsourcing
leader, our business is built on a strong heritage, great relationships and a talented team. Williams Lea delivers
efficient business processes in complex and highly regulated environments, connecting people, processes and
technology to manage documents and streamline key back office functions.
Tag is a leading end-to-end global creative production and sourcing partner to brands and agencies. As a production
and sourcing specialist, Tag offers a complementary skillset to in-house teams and advertising agencies to bring to life,
extend and deploy creative ideas. As a client partner, Tag brings a consultative and collaborative approach to
developing bespoke solutions for unique needs.
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Strategic report (continued)
Strategy
The key future strategies to deliver growth in the Group's marketing production and skilled business critical support
services are as follows:
- The creation of two strategic business units – Williams Lea (Business Support Services) and Tag (Marketing
Production and Sourcing Services) with separate leadership and business plans.
- Investment in broader digital capabilities to drive efficiencies and improve the client offering.
- Customer excellence programme to drive commercial effectiveness including investment in next generation
technology platforms to enhance client experience and value.
- Building the mergers and acquisition pipeline to bolster Group capabilities and to bring in additional service lines as
well as continued geographical expansion.
Review of the business
Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to €1.1bn (2018: €1.04bn), with EBITDA before
exceptional items of €43.9m (2018: €48.2m). The business saw strong revenue growth in 2019, particularly in Tag and
the communication services business, but due to weaknesses in the customer portfolio mix and the timing of the new
business, the additional 2019 revenue will not translate into improved profitability until 2020.
The key performance measures of the business are set out in the table below:
Key performance indicators
Revenues
EBITDA before exceptional costs
Exceptional items
Operating cash flow

Year ended
31 December 2019

Year ended
31 December 2018

€1,101.2m
€43.9m
€30.4m
€14.5m

€1,038.4m
€48.2m
€41.2m
€9.8m

Exceptional items of €30.4m (2018: €41.2m) were incurred during the year primarily relating to operational
restructuring projects, business transformation projects and the implementation of new finance and human resources
systems (further detail can be found in note 5 to the financial statements). These projects all form part of and underpin
the Board's strategies to align the business into two strategic business units and to deliver improved future
performance for the shareholders.
The retained loss for the financial year, including exceptional items, amounted to €44.6m (2018: €38.9m) and as at the
year end, the Group had net assets of €85.7m (2018: €129.5m).
Business transformation
During 2019 the Group has invested heavily in the implementation and bedding down of a new finance, human
resources ("HR") and payroll enterprise resource planning ("ERP") suite of systems, known as Workday, to provide a
better planning, execution and analysis across the business. Moving forward, the new Workday system will streamline
finance and HR processes and reporting to give the senior management team the tools it needs to make business
decisions both smarter and faster.
As part of the system transformation, transactional finance and HR processes have been offshored and outsourced to
an external provider. The combined investment in systems and external capabilities will ultimately drive cost
efficiencies in the core processes and support and sustain the profitable growth of the Group. It will also create the
backbone necessary to facilitate and deliver the core business strategies outlined above.
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Strategic report (continued)
On 24 December 2019, the AI Wertheimer Holdings Group entered an arrangement with Waireia Temprano 2019DAC to provide trade receivables financing facilities to its UK subsidiaries with effect from January 2020. As the
facility comes online during the course of 2020, it is anticipated that the arrangement will provide the UK members of
the Group with €51.5m of additional working capital finance to support business growth.
Outlook
Tag
Within the creative production and sourcing market, the Directors see growth in in-housing and a swing towards a
mixed model, which is a very positive backdrop for the Group. The Group is able to offer customers, who are seeking
end to end services across channels, a service which reduces cost and improves brand consistency, whilst maintaining
a highly responsive and flexible operating model that also has a global reach.
Customers have been caught out by digital disruption, have been struggling to provide end-to end services and are
hindered by a lack of transparency. A number of smaller start-ups are also harnessing the in-housing trend and are a
potential long-term threat but due to the diverse offering of Tag have so far had little or no impact.
Williams Lea
Within the skilled business critical support market, both legal and investment banking clients are targeting reductions
in real estate and employment costs which is again a very positive development for the Group. Clients are looking for
digital workflow technology to improve their internal processes.
A number of specialist competitors in both legal and investment banking are emerging at the higher end of the market.
However, Williams Lea has few competitors that can compete effectively with the Group because of its equivalent
geographic scale and breadth of services.
Regulations affecting the Group include General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR") and Cyber Security. GDPR
favours scale providers with the technology and process compliance capabilities of the Group. Cyber protection is
becoming increasingly important and the Group is responding to this with a significant investment in people and
technology.
Subsequent events
The COVID-19 outbreak has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of infections globally. Measures
taken by various governments to contain the virus have affected economic activity. The Group has taken a number of
measures to monitor and prevent the effects of the COVID-19 virus such as implementing safety and health measures
for its people and securing the supply of materials that are essential to the production process.
At this stage the impact of COVID-19 on the Group, its operations and its results is noteworthy, but the limited
exposure the Group has to sectors severely impacted by the virus (leisure/entertainment/travel/retail) is well mitigated
by the Group's operations in a number of other sectors that have been less impacted, such as pharmaceuticals and legal
and financial services. As such, there is less impact expected on the Group's top line.
The 2020 annual budget was re-planned at the end of the first quarter with the senior management team moving
swiftly to accelerate offshoring projects to deliver significant cost savings and improved liquidity. The impact of
COVID-19 will continue to be closely monitored, with the senior team being well placed to take any future necessary
actions, both quickly and decisively.
The Group will continue to follow the various national institute policies and advice and in parallel, will do its utmost
to continue operations in the best and safest way possible without jeopardizing the health of its people. Investment in
additional equipment and in remote working arrangements for employees has been made which will enable new
flexible working conditions to continue for as long as required.
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Strategic report (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties
The Group assesses risk at board level and through other operational boards which meet on a regular basis. The
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out below:
General business environment
The business of the Group substantially depends on the financial health of our customers which in turn depends on the
global macro-economic environment.
Competition
The Group operates in a competitive environment and all contracts and processes are subject to regular analysis with
the aim of retaining existing customers, growing the customer base and optimising the economic performance under
customer contracts.
Employees
The hard work, expertise and commitment of its employees are essential to the commercial success of the Group and a
high priority is placed on the effectiveness of employment practices and human resource development initiatives.
Actions and programmes in relation to employee engagement and involvement are described in the Directors’ report.
Information technology and cyber risks
Information technology is an integral part of the Group’s service capability and its business performance depends
heavily on the functioning and performance of its applications and infrastructure. Active risk management processes
are in place to maximise the efficiency of the Group’s technology. The directors continuously monitor data security
compliance and risk.
Financial risk management
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework. The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including inflation risk, credit risk, contract
risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
Inflation risk
Inflation arises when goods and services sold by the Group are purchased from external suppliers. These costs are
subject to regular review and competitive procurement processes. The Group is partially exposed to commodity price
risk as a result of key raw materials historically showing volatility in price. These relate principally to the strategic
sourcing service line and are also subject to regular review and competitive procurement processes. Where possible
the Group passes the effects of such volatility on to its customers. Where not possible, this is communicated and the
risk assessed by senior management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk
management follows normal best practice and includes varying levels of credit assessments according to customer size
and active credit performance management through key performance indicators such as days’ sales outstanding.
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Strategic report (continued)
Contract risk
Contract risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from contract breach. Contract risk is managed by a
formal contract approval processes, active operational management and, to in some cases, certain risks are insured.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Group’s income or costs.
- Foreign currency risk is attributable to investments, financing measures and operating activities. Cross-currency
swaps are used to limit foreign currency risk. These transactions relate to the exchange rate hedging of all payments
covering general business activities that are not made in the functional currency of the respective Group companies.
The principle of matching currencies applies to the Group’s financing activities.
- Hedging transactions performed in 2018 as part of foreign currency risk management related primarily to sterling,
the US dollar and the Euro. Further details are set out in note 17.
- Interest rate risk results from changes in market interest rates, primarily for medium and long term debt. Interest rate
swaps, cross-currency swaps and other types of interest rate contracts are entered into to hedge against this risk
primarily under fair value or cash flow hedges, and depending on market conditions.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its operations and maintains
funds on demand to meet all operational expenses including the servicing of financial obligations. Further details of
the Group’s bank facilities and other borrowings are set out in note 18.
Borrowings
The Group’s borrowings were put in place at the time of the acquisition by Advent International on 30 November
2017.
Senior facilities
The Group’s financing facilities with a syndicate of lenders comprise senior loans of €120m and a revolving credit
facility of €30m, which are secured by a charge over all of the Group’s subsidiaries. Interest is charged at a rate of
EURIBOR (subject to a 1% floor when EURIBOR is less than zero) plus a margin of 5% and 3% on the senior loans
and revolving credit facility, respectively. Interest on the senior loans is payable on a quarterly basis. All of the senior
bank loans are repayable on 30 November 2022. Drawdowns of the revolving facility during the year ended 31
December 2019 which remained outstanding at year end totalled €25.9m (2018: nil).
The senior facilities agreement includes one financial covenant, a leverage ratio, which is tested on a quarterly basis.
The covenant requires that the Group’s net debt as at 31 December 2019 does not exceed 3.25 times (2018: 3.75
times) its adjusted consolidated EBITDA. At all testing periods during the year, the covenant tests were met. At year
end the Group’s leverage ratio was 1.77.
Hedging instruments
The Group has entered into forward foreign currency contracts to mitigate the exchange rate risk for certain foreign
currency payables incorporating an interest rate swap to hedge the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements on the
Senior bank loans. Further details are set out in note 17.
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Payment in kind loan
The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2019 include a PIK loan of €115.4m (2018: €107.8m) provided by
Deutsche Post DHL. No repayments of the loan were made during the year (2018: €8.8m). The loan is secured by a
charge over all of the Group’s subsidiaries and interest is charged at a rate of EURIBOR (subject to a 0% floor when
EURIBOR is less than zero) plus a scaled margin starting at 6.25% in year one and rising to 9.5% in year six. The PIK
loan is repayable on 31 May 2023. Interest is capitalised and will be settled on the date of final repayment.
Statement of compliance
The Directors consider the annual report and financial statements to comply with all aspects of the Guidelines for
Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity.
By order of the board

C Benson
21 August 2020

13-14 Esplanade
St Helier
Jersey
JE1 1EE

9

AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Directors’ report
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2019
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.
Future developments
The Directors intend to follow the strategy as set out in the Strategic report, to build a strong, independent marketing and
communications services business.
Commentary
The commentary on the operational performance of the Group in the period is set out in the Strategic report.
Dividends
No dividends were paid or are recommended for the year (2018: none).
Donations
During the year no political donations were made by the Group or the Company (2018: none). Charitable donations
amounted to €nil (2018: €7k).
Financial instruments
Details of financial instruments are provided in the Strategic report.
Research and development
The Group’s research and development activities are focussed on technology and efficiency activities, with specific
attention to the digitalisation of marketing assets, process improvements in workflow management, and in developing
solutions to data analytics relevant and available to clients.
Subsequent events
Details of subsequent events are provided in the Strategic report.
Going concern
The directors make an estimate of the future performance of the Group and Company in order to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis. When assessing future performance, the directors consider financial projections
which reflect current expected market conditions, liquidity requirements and opportunities and risks. On the basis of their
assessment, the directors are confident that the Group and Company has adequate resources to continue to trade for the
foreseeable future, being a period of at least 12 months from the date of approving these financial statements. The Group
and Company therefore continue to adopt the going concern as a basis for the preparation of these financial statements.
The COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 has added additional uncertainty and risk to future operations of the Group due to the
global footprint of its operations. The impact of and steps take by the directors to mitigate the impact of the pandemic
are set out in the Strategic Report.
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Directors’ report (continued)
Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up until the date of approval of the financial statements unless
otherwise indicated were as follows:
J Brocklebank
C Benson
None of the directors hold any interest in the shares of the Group or Company.
Messrs Brocklebank and Benson are representatives of Advent International Corporation. Summary details for each of
the current directors are shown below.
James Brocklebank, Managing Partner Advent International plc, London
Experience: James Brocklebank joined Advent in 1997. Based in London, he co-chairs Advent’s global Executive
Committee and is co-head of the firm’s European business where he is also responsible for the European business and
financial services sector team. Prior to Advent, James worked on international mergers and acquisitions in the London
office of investment bank Baring Brothers and its affiliate Dillon, Read & Co. in New York. James has an MA in
Geography from Cambridge University.
Investments: James has worked on 16 Advent investments, including Concardis GmbH, Equiniti, GFKL, Nets, Nexi,
V. Group, Williams Lea Tag and Worldpay.
Directorships: Current: Nexi, Nets Holding, V.Group Limited, Williams Lea Tag
Previous: Equiniti, MACH, Tertio Telecoms, Worldpay
Chris Benson, Director Advent International plc, London
Experience: Chris Benson joined Advent in 2012. Previously, he worked for Actis, an emerging market private equity
fund, making investments across Africa, Asia and Latin America. Prior to Actis, he was a consultant with OC&C
Strategy Consultants in London.
Chris has an MA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from Oxford University and an MBA from Harvard Business
School, where he was a Fulbright Scholar.
Investments: Chris has worked on Advent's investments in Nexi, Towergate, V.Group, Williams Lea Tag and Worldpay.
Directorships: Current: Williams Lea Tag
Qualifying third-party and pension scheme indemnity provisions
A comprehensive insurance policy is in place against certain liabilities which could arise from a negligent act or a breach
of duty by the Company's directors and officers and those of its subsidiaries in the discharge of their duties. This is a
qualifying third party indemnity provision, which was in force throughout the financial year and at the date of approval
of the financial statements.
Employees
The Group believes that the wellbeing of its employees and their active participation in two-way communication forums
is fundamental to the success of the business. Regular meetings, conference calls and webcasts are held where Company
strategy and operational matters are discussed. Training is provided according to structured training and development
plans for employees at all levels.
Employee engagement surveys are conducted annually and the most recent one had a higher participation rate than in
recent years. The results of the survey are built into communication and consultation plans for each employee or, where
more relevant, Group of employees.
Full consideration is given to all applications for employment and to treat all staff fairly, regardless of gender, religion,
race, age or disability. Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Company’s policy, where practicable, to
provide continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and to provide training and career development and
promotion opportunities to disabled employees.
Senior employees participate directly in the success of the business through the Group’s bonus schemes.
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Directors’ report (continued)
Gender diversity information
The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities in employment and eliminating unlawful and unfair
discrimination in employment and against clients.
The Group values the differences that a diverse workforce brings to the organisation and will not discriminate because of
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race (which includes
colour, nationality and ethnic or national origins), religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation (each of these being a
“protected characteristic” in discrimination law). It will not discriminate because of any other irrelevant factor and will
build a culture that values openness, fairness and transparency.
The gender split of the Group’s work force at the end of December 2019 is set out below:
Male
Female
Non-binary
Board
2
Senior management
8
2
Total workforce
5,293
3,962
36

Total
2
10
9,291

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2018, the Company published our
Gender Pay Gap Analysis which can be viewed on the Company website at https://www.wlt.com/gender-pay-gapanalysis
Environmental matters
The Group recognises that environmental issues are a fundamental challenge for the global community. We recognise
that we have a responsibility to manage our environmental impacts that arise through our operations and supply chain
activity.
The Group seeks to provide a holistic Environmental Management System that demonstrates our commitment to
environmental protection, pollution prevention, waste reduction and the preservation of our natural resources. We
recognise our responsibility to manage the environmental impacts that arise through operations and the need to support
our clients in achieving their environmental objectives. We believe we can affect positive environmental change within
the market in which we operate and within the supply chain, that supports our products and services.
The Board supports this policy as it seeks to add value by safeguarding our reputation, minimising loss and providing
continued productivity and service delivery.
Our Environmental Policy sets the high-level structure within which the Group can meet its legal, regulatory and
contractual obligations. We will identify our environmental aspects and impacts within our operations and manage these
in accordance with the EN ISO 14001 framework.
The Group’s environmental objectives include:
• Demonstrate proactive leadership and management in the prevention and/or reduction of our environmental impact
arising from our business operations.
• Implement energy and water efficiency programmes where economically and operationally practical.
• Comply and maintain regulatory compliance and other requirements to which we subscribe.
• Provide adequate information, instruction, training to our employees, visitors and contractors.
• Maintain our Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)® & Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC)
within the scope of our certifications.
• Continuously improve our management systems, monitor and communicate our performance.
We successfully achieved SKA Gold sustainability for the design and build of our Global HQ in London and endorsed
by BREEAM ‘Excellent’ ratings, the world's longest established method of assessing, rating, and certifying the
sustainability of buildings.
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Social, community and human rights issues
The Group is developing its Corporate Social Responsibility strategy to widen its reach and measure its impact across
the many communities we engage with. The Group conducted its first Corporate Social Responsibility assessment in
January 2018 using the EcoVadis methodology and platform, where a Silver Rating was achieved. Our impact was
assessed across four themes: environment, fair labour practices, ethics/fair business practices, and supply chain, and
against 21 key CSR indicators.
Pursuant to Section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 the Group has taken and is continuing to take adequate
practices to ensure that modern slavery or human trafficking is not taking place within our business or supply chain.
Modern slavery encompasses slavery, servitude, human trafficking and forced labour. The Group has a zero-tolerance
approach to any form of modern slavery. We are strongly committed to playing our part in eradicating modern slavery by
ensuring we act ethically and with integrity and transparency in all business dealings and to putting effective systems and
controls in place to safeguard against any form of modern slavery taking place within the business or supply chain.
Globally, the Group's employees have participated and volunteered across a wide range of charitable initiatives
including: Make-A-Wish International; the World’s Biggest Coffee morning with MacMillan in UK; the Australian Red
Cross, assisting with the recovery of areas devasted by bushfires; supporting beach clean ups and many other children’s
charities, all aiding the underprivileged in the community.
Branches outside the UK
During the 2019 reporting year, the subsidiaries of the Group operated branches in: Denmark, Korea, the Netherlands,
New Zealand, Poland, Romania, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, Taiwan, Turkey, the USA and the UAE.
Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view, in
accordance with applicable Jersey law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, of the state of affairs of the Group
and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.
The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
The Companies (Jersey) Law, 1991. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group’s websites. Legislation in Jersey governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities (continued)
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are
unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are
aware of that information.
Independent auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and are deemed to be
reappointed under Article 113 of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
By order of the board.

C Benson
21 August 2020

13-14 Esplanade
St Helier
Jersey
JE1 1EE
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Independent auditors' report to the members of
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion, AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited’s Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”):
- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the
Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2019; the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the consolidated and Company statements of changes
in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:
- the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
- the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group’s
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

15

AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Independent auditors' report to the members of
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited (continued)
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Strategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Independent auditors' report to the members of
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited (continued)
Other required reporting
Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 exception reporting

Under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or proper returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
- the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Andy Grimbly
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambridge
21 August 2020
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2019
profit and loss account

Year ended
31 December
2019
€’000

Year ended
31 December
2018
€’000

3

1,101,177

1,038,388

4

43,931

48,245

5
6
6

(30,410)
(37,075)
(10,410)

(41,190)
(21,854)
(10,063)

6

(33,964)

(24,862)

8
9

4,632
(20,917)

4,779
(17,752)

10

(50,249)
5,610

(37,835)
(1,107)

(44,639)

(38,942)

(36,140)
(8,499)

(31,550)
(7,392)

(44,639)

(38,942)

Note

p Revenue
p
p EBITDA before exceptional items
p
p Exceptional items
p Amortisation
p Depreciation
p
p Operating loss
p
p Interest receivable and similar income
p Interest payable and similar charges
p
p Loss before taxation
p Tax on loss
p
p Loss for the year
p
p
p Loss attributable to owners of the parent
p Loss attributable to non controlling interests
p
p Total
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2019
statement of comprehensive income

Note

s Loss for the year
s Other comprehensive income/(expense):
s Currency translation differences
s Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation
s Deferred tax arising on losses recognised in this statement
s
s Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax
s
s Total comprehensive loss for the year
s
s
s Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the parent
s Total comprehensive loss attributable to non controlling interests

19

Year ended
31 December
2019
€’000

Year ended
31 December
2018
€’000

(44,639)

(38,942)

807
(6)
-

(3,744)
(164)
(14)

801

(3,922)

(43,838)

(42,864)

(35,492)
(8,346)

(34,657)
(8,207)

(43,838)

(42,864)
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Consolidated and Company balance sheets
at 31 December 2019

Note

Group
2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Company
2019
2018
€’000
€’000

Fixed assets

C Intangible assets
C Tangible assets
C Investments
C
C Total
C
C Current assets
C Inventories
C Debtors
C Cash at bank and in hand
C Current Total
C
C Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
C
C Net current assets
C
C Total assets less current liabilities
C
C Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
C Post-employment benefits
C Provisions for other liabilities
C
C Net assets
C Capital and reserves
C Called up share capital
C Accumulated losses
C Accumulated other comprehensive loss
C
C Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
C
C Non-controlling interests
C
C Total equity

278,911
27,230
-

297,135
23,380
-

148,007

148,007

306,141

320,515

148,007

148,007

14
15

8,912
284,239
46,092
339,243

12,329
252,116
45,793
310,238

96
96

97
97

16

(280,215)

(231,341)

-

-

59,028

78,897

96

97

365,169

399,412

148,103

148,104

(259,787)
(8,205)
(11,496)

(241,163)
(8,262)
(20,468)

-

-

85,681

129,519

148,103

148,104

148,107
(71,872)
(2,428)

148,107
(35,732)
(3,076)

148,107
(4)
-

148,107
(3)
-

73,807

109,299

148,103

148,104

11,874

20,220

-

-

85,681

129,519

148,103

148,104

11
12
13

17
19
20

23

29

The notes on pages 24 to 58 are an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements on pages 18 to 58 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 August 2020
and were signed on its behalf by:

C Benson
Director
Company registered number:

124975
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2019

statement of changes in equity

Equity
Accumulated attributable
Called up
other
to the
share Accumulated comprehensive
owners of
losses income/ (loss) the parent
capital
€000
€000
€000
€000

Non
controlling
interest
€000

Total
equity
€000

Group
Balance at 1 January 2018
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive expense for the
year
Total comprehensive loss for the
year
Total changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Transactions with non-controlling
s interests
Balance as at 31 December 2018

Group
s Balance at 1 January 2019

s Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
s year
Total comprehensive loss for the
s year

statement of changes in equity
s Balance as at 31 December 2019

148,107

(8,777)

31

139,361

28,228

167,589

-

(31,550)

-

(31,550)

(7,392)

(38,942)

-

-

(3,107)

(3,107)

              

              

              

              

(815)
(3,922)
                             
(8,207) (42,864)
                             

-

(31,550)

(3,107)

(34,657)

              

              

              

              

-

4,595

-

4,595

              
              
-

              
4,595
              
-

              
              
-

              
4,595
              
-

148,107

(35,732)

(3,076)

109,299

20,220

129,519

Equity
Accumulated attributable
Called up
other
to the
share Accumulated comprehensive
owners of
capital
losses (loss)/ income the parent
€000
€000
€000
€000

Non
controlling
interest
€000

Total
equity
€000

(4,595)

-

                             
(4,595)
                             
4,794
4,794

148,107

(35,732)

(3,076)

109,299

20,220

129,519

-

(36,140)

-

(36,140)

(8,499)

(44,639)

-

-

648

-

(36,140)

648

648
              
(35,492)

801
              
(8,346) (43,838)

148,107

(71,872)

(2,428)

73,807

153

11,874

85,681
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2019

statement of changes in equity

Called up Accumulated
share capital
losses
€000
€000

Total
equity
€000

Company
Balance at 1 January 2018

148,107

(2)

148,105

Loss for the year

-

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

(1)
(1)
                             
(1)
(1)

              
148,107

                             
(3) 148,104

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Called up
share Accumulated
capital
losses
€000
€000

Total
equity
€000

Company
Balance at 1 January 2019

148,107

(3)

148,104

s Loss for the year

-

(1)

(1)

s Total comprehensive loss for the year
s
s Balance as at 31 December 2019

-

(1)

(1)

148,107

(4)

148,103

s
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019
cash flow
statement

Note

c Net cash from operating activities
c Taxation paid
c
c Net cash generated from operating activities
c
c Cash flow from investing activities
c Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired)
c Payment of deferred consideration on acquired subsidiaries
c Receipt from subsidiary purchase price adjustment
c Purchase of intangible fixed assets
c Purchase of tangible fixed assets
c Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets
c Interest received
c
c Net cash used in investing activities
c
c Cash flow from financing activities
c Repayments of payment in kind loan
c Receipts from revolving credit facility
c Repayments of other short term loans
c Interest paid
c Receipts from non-controlling interests
c Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
c
c Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
c Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
c Exchange gains (losses) on cash and cash equivalents
c
c Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
c
c Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
c Cash at bank and in hand
c
c Total

25

11
12
8

25
25

29

Year ended
31 December
2019
€’000

Year ended
31 December
2018
€’000

15,432
(966)

15,543
(5,733)

14,466

9,810

(3,633)
(18,929)
(10,919)
473
4,632

(21,337)
11,600
(23,641)
(8,329)
356
4,779

(28,376)

(36,572)

25,401
(11,836)
13,565

(8,800)
(2,968)
(8,705)
4,794
(15,679)

(345)
45,793
644

(42,441)
86,932
1,302

46,092

45,793

46,092

45,793

46,092

45,793

The Company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102 and has elected to take the exemption provided by
FRS 102, para 1.12 (b) not to present the Company cash flow statement.
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Notes to the financial statements
1

Accounting policies

General information
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’) provide marketing and
communications services.
AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited is a private Company limited by shares and is incorporated in Jersey. The address of
its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE.
Statement of compliance
The Group and individual financial statements of AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited have been prepared in compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘‘The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’’ (‘‘FRS 102’’) and the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991.
Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
a.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.
The Company has not presented its individual profit and loss account as allowed under Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
The Company’s loss for the year was €1,000 (2018: €1,000).
b.

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its own financial resources as well as, from time
to time, through bank facilities. The current economic conditions continue to create uncertainty over (a) the level of
demand for the Group’s products; and (b) the availability of bank finance for the foreseeable future. On 24 December
2019, the Group entered an arrangement with Waireia Temprano 2019-DAC to provide trade receivables financing
facilities to its UK subsidiaries with effect from January 2020. It is anticipated that the arrangement will provide UK
members of the Group with €51.5m of additional working capital finance.
Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 has added additional uncertainty and risk to future operations of the
Group due to the global footprint of its operations. The steps take by the directors to mitigate the impact of the pandemic
are set out in the Strategic Report, which is included in these financial statements. The Group’s forecasts and
projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance and the impact of COVID-19, show
that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its current facilities. After making enquiries, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1

Accounting policies (continued)

c. Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions. The Company has taken advantage of the following
exemptions in its individual financial statements on the basis that it is a qualifying entity:
• from the financial instrument disclosures, required under FRS 102 paragraphs 11.39 to 11.48 and paragraphs 12.26 to
12.29, as the information is provided in the consolidated financial statement disclosures;
• from disclosing the Company key management personnel compensation in total, paragraph 33.7; and
• from preparing a statement of cash flows under FRS 102 paragraph 1.12(b), on the basis that it is a qualifying entity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows, included in these statements, includes the Company's cash flows.
d.

Basis of consolidation

The Group consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings together with the Group’s share of the results of any associates made up for the year to 31 December 2019.
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Where the Group owns less than 50% of the voting powers of an
entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agreement with other investors which give it control of the financial and
operating policies of the entity it accounts for that entity as a subsidiary.
Where a subsidiary has different accounting policies to the Group, adjustments are made to those subsidiary financial
statements to apply the Group’s accounting policies when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
An associate is an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the Group holds a long-term interest
and where the Group has significant influence. The Group considers that it has significant influence where it has the
power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate. The results of associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.
Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of
change of control or change of significant influence respectively.
Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. The cumulative
amounts of any exchange differences on translation, recognised in equity, are not included in the gain or loss on disposal
and are transferred to retained earnings. The gain or loss also includes amounts included in other comprehensive income
that are required to be reclassified to profit or loss but excludes those amounts that are not required to be reclassified.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Adjustments are made to
eliminate the profit or loss arising on transactions with associates to the extent of the Group’s interest in the entity.

25

AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1

Accounting policies (continued)

e.

Foreign currency

The Group and Company financial statements are presented in Euros and rounded to thousands. The Company’s
functional and presentation currency is the Euro.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.
At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary items measured
at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items measured at
fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value was determined.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss
account.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, hedging activities and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the profit and loss account within ‘finance (expense)/income’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the profit and loss account within ‘Other operating (losses)/gains’.
The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into Euros at the average exchange rates for the period. The
assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are
translated at the exchange rates ruling at the period-end. Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of opening
net investments and from the translation of the profits or losses at average rates are recognised in ‘Other comprehensive
income’ and allocated to non-controlling interest as appropriate.
f.

Revenue recognition

All income relating to normal business operations is recognised as revenue in the profit and loss account. All other
income is reported as other operating income.
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Group obtains the right to consideration in exchange for its performance.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales
taxes or duty.
The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1

Accounting policies (continued)

Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the
buyer, the Group retains no continuing involvement or control, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when delivery of those services is complete. Revenue
that meets these criteria but that has not been invoiced is recognised as accrued income. When assessing the value of
accrued income management considers factors including selling price, the ageing profile and historical experience.
Revenue that has been invoiced but that does not meet the recognition criteria is deferred and any related direct costs are
recognised as work in progress.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest rate method.
g.

Exceptional items

Items which are significant by virtue of their size or nature and which are considered non-recurring are classified as
exceptional items. Such items, which include for example restructuring and transformation costs of the Group, are
included within the appropriate profit and loss account category but are highlighted separately in the notes to the
financial statements. Exceptional items are excluded from the underlying profit measures used by the Board to monitor
and measure the underlying performance of the Group (see note 5).
h.

Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benefits to employees, including annual bonus arrangements, paid holiday arrangements
and defined contribution pension plans.
Short term benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the service is received.
Annual bonus plans
The Group operates a number of annual bonus plans for employees. An expense is recognised in the profit and loss
account when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to make payments under the plans as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Defined contribution pension plans
The Group operates a number of country-specific defined contribution plans for its employees. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions have
been paid the Group has no further payment obligations. The contributions are recognised as an expense when they are
due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet. The assets of the plan are held separately from the
Group in independently administered funds.
Defined benefit pension plans
The Group operates defined benefit plans for certain employees. A defined benefit plan defines the pension benefit that
the employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent upon several factors including age, length of service and
remuneration. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Defined benefit pension plans (continued)
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of the plan assets at the reporting date.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method. Annually the Group engages
independent actuaries to calculate the obligation. The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future
payments using market yields on high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in sterling and that have terms
approximating the estimated period of the future payments (‘discount rate’).
The fair value of plan assets is measured in accordance with the FRS 102 fair value hierarchy and in accordance with the
Group’s policy for similarly held assets. This includes the use of appropriate valuation techniques.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income. These amounts together with the return on plan assets, less amounts included in
net interest, are disclosed as ‘Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability’.
The cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in profit or loss as employee costs, except where included in the cost of
an asset, comprises:
i.

the increase in pension benefit liability arising from employee service during the period; and

ii. the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is recognised in profit or loss as ‘Finance expense’.
The Company has no employees and thus there are no employee benefits.
i.

Taxation

Taxation expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting year. Tax is recognised in
the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the period or prior periods. Tax is
calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income
as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in financial statements.
Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax
assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or
other future taxable profits.
Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end and
that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.
j.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. The cost of a business combination is the
fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or assumed and of equity instruments issued plus the costs
directly attributable to the business combination. Where control is achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the
date of each transaction.
Contingent consideration is initially recognised at estimated amount where the consideration is probable and can be
measured reliably. Where (i) the contingent consideration is not considered probable or cannot be reliably measured but
subsequently becomes probable and measureable or (ii) contingent consideration previously measured is adjusted, the
amounts are recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the business combination.
On acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
unless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value is incorporated in goodwill. Where the fair
value of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed on the same basis as other contingent
liabilities.
Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the purchase consideration
over the fair values to the Group’s interest in the identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.
On acquisition, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (‘CGU’s’) that are expected to benefit from the
combination.
Goodwill is amortised over its expected useful lives which is estimated to be 10 or 20 years. Goodwill is assessed for
impairment when there are indicators of impairment and any impairment is charged to the income statement. No
reversals of impairment are recognised.
k.

-

Intangible assets
Brand
Customer relationships
Technology platforms
Goodwill

7 to 15 years
15 years
3 to 5 years
10 to 20 years

Intangible assets under development are not amortised until they are fully brought into use, at which point they are
transferred into the appropriate intangible asset category above.
Amortisation is included in administration expenses in the profit and loss account.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Where factors, such as technological advancement or changes in market price, indicate that residual value or useful life
have changed, the residual value, useful life or amortisation rate are amended prospectively to reflect the new
circumstances.
The assets are reviewed for impairment if the above factors indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.
Costs associated with maintaining technology platforms are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
- it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;
- management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;
- there is an ability to use or sell the software;
- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;
- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are
available; and
- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.
Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
l.

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the
original purchase price, costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use,
dismantling and restoration costs.
Buildings - leasehold improvements
Buildings include short leasehold improvements and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
Plant and machinery and computer and office equipment
Plant and machinery and computer and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation and residual values
Depreciation on assets is calculated, using the straight-line method, to allocate the depreciable amount to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
-

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Computer and office equipment

over the period of the lease
10 – 15 years
3 – 8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent additions and major components
Subsequent costs, including major inspections, are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any replaced component is derecognised. Major components are treated as a separate asset
where they have significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits and are depreciated separately over
its useful life.
Repairs, maintenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred.
Assets in the course of construction
Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost. These assets are not depreciated until they are available for use.
De-recognition
Tangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On disposal, the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss within operating
profit or loss.
m.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
n.

Leased assets

At inception the Group assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment considers whether the
arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement.
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance
leases.
Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments under
operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Finance leased assets
Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as assets at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where the implicit
rate cannot be determined the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Incremental direct costs, incurred in
negotiating and arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset.
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Finance leased assets (continued)
Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset. Assets are assessed for
impairment at each reporting date.
The capital element of lease obligations is recorded as a liability on inception of the arrangement. Lease payments are
apportioned between capital repayment and finance charge, using the effective interest rate method, to produce a
constant rate of charge on the balance of the capital repayments outstanding.
Incentives received to enter into a finance lease reduce the fair value of the asset and are included in the calculation of
present value of minimum lease payments. Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the profit
and loss account, to reduce the lease expense, on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
o.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine whether there is an
indication that the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) may be impaired. If there is such an indication the recoverable
amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is compared to the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash
generating unit).
The recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax obtainable as a
result of the asset’s (or asset’s cash generating unit) continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.
If the recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account, unless the asset has been revalued when the amount is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent
of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is recognised in profit or loss.
If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
Goodwill is allocated on acquisition to the cash generating unit expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Goodwill is included in the carrying value of cash generating units for impairment testing.
p.

Investments – Company

Investments in subsidiary companies and associates are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

32

AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1

Accounting policies (continued)

q.

Inventories

All inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to sell. The cost is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Cost includes the purchase price, including taxes and duties
and transport and handling directly attributable to bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.
At the end of each reporting period inventories are assessed for impairment. If an item of inventory is impaired, the
identified inventory is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and an impairment charge is recognised
in the profit and loss account. Where a reversal of the impairment is required the impairment charge is reversed, up to
the original impairment loss, and is recognised as a credit in the profit and loss account.
Work in progress and finished goods
Cost of work in progress and finished goods includes all costs incurred in bringing each product and service to its
present location and condition. Cost includes direct materials, labour plus attributable overheads based on a normal level
of activity.
r.

Amounts recoverable on contracts

Direct incremental costs incurred on contracts prior to and during service commencement and reimbursable during the
contract are included in amounts recoverable on contracts and amortised over the life of the contract.
s.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when applicable, are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
t.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations might be small. In particular:
Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Group has a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a
valid expectation in those affected by either starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those
affected and therefore has a legal or constructive obligation to carry out the restructuring; and
Provision is not made for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised, except those acquired in a business combination. Contingent liabilities arise as
a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources or that the amount cannot be
reliably measured at the reporting date or (ii) when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
u.

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen to adopt sections 11 and 12 of FRS102 in respect of financial instruments.
Financial assets
Basic financial assets and liabilities, including trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables and loans from fellow Group companies are recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes
a financing transaction. The Group currently has no such financing transactions.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence of
impairment. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
If there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.
Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently
carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that investments in equity
instruments that are not publically traded and whose fair values cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less
impairment.
Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or
(b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite
having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another
party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional
restrictions.
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Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade payables and other payables, bank loans and loans from fellow Group
companies are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where
the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
recognised in profit or loss.
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one period or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Derivatives, including interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial instruments.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss in finance costs or
finance income as appropriate, unless they are included in a hedging arrangement.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is an
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Hedging arrangements
The Group applies hedge accounting for transactions entered into to manage the fair value risks of borrowings. Cross
currency interest rate swaps are held to manage the fair value risks which could arise from changes in interest rates and
foreign currency rates.
Changes in the fair values of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are recognised in directly in profit or loss.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, no longer meets the hedging criteria, the hedged
debt instrument is derecognised or the hedging instrument is terminated.
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v.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
w.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Group’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the
statement of changes in equity.
x.

Related party transactions

The Group discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group. Where appropriate,
transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to
understand the effect of the transactions on the Group financial statements

2

Accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Key accounting estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires exercise of judgment by management, who are required to make
certain assumptions and estimates that may affect the amounts of the assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet,
the amounts of income and expenses and the disclosures regarding contingent liabilities. These judgements include
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results.
The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period are as follows:
Technology platforms
Development expenditure on internal technology platforms is capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy for
intangible assets. Initial capitalisation is based on management’s judgement that technical and economic feasibility is
confirmed, usually when a development project has reached a defined milestone. In determining the amounts to be
capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
Income taxes
The Group has operating activities around the globe and is subject to local tax laws. Management uses estimates in
calculating the amounts of current and deferred taxes in the relevant countries. Although management believes that it has
made a reasonable estimate in relation to tax matters that are inherently uncertain, there can be no guarantee that the
actual outcome of these uncertain tax matters will correspond exactly to the original estimate made. Any difference
between the actual outcomes of these uncertain tax matters could have an effect on the tax liabilities and deferred taxes
in the period in which the matter is finally decided.
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Key accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
At each reporting date, the Group considers whether intangible assets and/or goodwill are impaired. Where an indication
of impairment is identified, the estimation of recoverable value requires estimation of the recoverable value of the cash
generating units (CGUs). This requires estimation of the future cash flows from the CGUs and also selection of
appropriate discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those cash flows.
Estimation of work in progress
The Group makes an estimate of the recoverable value of work in progress. When assessing the recoverable value of
work in progress management considers factors including selling price, the ageing profile and historical experience.
Impairment of debtors
The Group makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When assessing impairment of trade
and other debtors, management considers factors including the current credit rating of the debtor, the ageing profile of
debtors and historical experience.
Fair values in business combinations
The fair values of tangible and intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of subsidiaries involves the use of valuation
techniques and the estimation of future cash flows to be generated over a number of years. In addition, the estimation of
any contingent consideration payable requires estimation of the level of profitability of the business acquired. The
estimation of the fair values requires the combination of assumptions including revenue growth, sales mix and volumes
and customer churn rates. In addition the use of discount rates requires judgement.
Provisions
Provision is made for dilapidations, onerous leases, onerous contracts and employee benefits. These provisions require
management’s best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on legislative and contractual requirements. In
addition, the timing of the cash flows and the discount rates used to establish net present value of the obligations require
management’s judgement.
Defined benefit pension scheme
The Group has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and the present
value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including life expectancy, asset valuations and the discount rate
on corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension obligation in the balance sheet.
The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends. See note 19 for the disclosure relating to the defined
benefit pension schemes.
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The table below sets out an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geography and business operation.
Marketing CommunicaMarketing
Communicaservices tion services
Total
services
tion services
2019
2019
2019
2018
2018
€’000
€’000
€’000
€’000
€’000
Revenue
Revenue

Total
2018
€’000

UK, Rest of Europe,
Middle East and Africa
Americas
Asia-Pacific

266,454
211,101
160,147

199,605
208,906
54,964

466,059
420,007
215,111

261,227
182,053
132,049

208,297
203,992
50,770

469,524
386,045
182,819

Total revenue

637,702

463,475

1,101,177

575,329

463,059

1,038,388

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

4 p EBITDA
g pand net operating expenses

Group EBITDA (Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) is calculated as follows:
Revenue
Net operating costs
Operating loss
Depreciation and amortisation
Exceptional items
EBITDA

1,101,177
(1,135,141)
(33,964)
47,485
30,410

1,038,388
(1,063,250)
(24,862)
31,917
41,190

43,931

48,245

518,643
627,761
(11,263)

527,819
549,538
(14,107)

1,135,141

1,063,250

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Net operating expenses of the Group, including exceptional items (note 5), comprise:
Cost of sales
Administration expenses
Other operating income
Net operating costs
5

Exceptional
items
p
Exceptional items included within net operating expenses (note 4) are categorised as
follows:
Cost of sales
Administration expenses:
Recruitment costs
Severance costs
Other staff costs
Legal, professional and consultancy fees
System separation and implementation costs
Other reorganisation costs

1,962

1,671

451
4,354
5,146
14,275
4,159
63

938
8,921
2,754
14,827
10,119
1,960

Total

30,410

41,190

As part of the Group's strategy to develop two distinct business units with separate leadership and business models,
exceptional costs have been incurred in relation to the planned disposal of the non-core activity: customer
communications mangement. Williams Lea has been restructured during the year to have its own internal governance
structure and to disaggregate it from Tag. Significant remediation costs were also incurred relating to the in-year system
implementation to make the installed system fit for purpose.
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6 p Operating
loss
g

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

393,008
29,999
11,650

358,005
28,739
12,924

Total staff costs

434,657

399,668

42,487
3,728
(1,716)
30,410
37,075
10,410
(1)
743

36,563
2,952
(1,706)
41,190
21,854
10,063
(110)
(10)

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

1,291

78

403
1,427
1,005

950
28
682

Operating loss is stated after charging/(crediting)

Operating lease rentals
Foreign exchange losses
Foreign exchange gains
Exceptional items (note 5)
Amortisation
Depreciation
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Impairment of trade receivables

Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit of the Company and the Group consolidated financial statements
Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditors and their associates in respect of:
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries
Tax and other advisory services
Tax compliance services

7 Employees and directors
Employees and directors
Employees
The Company has no employees (2018: none). The average number of persons employed by the Group (including
directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:
Number of employees
Group
Group
2019
2018
Marketing services
Communication services
Administration

1,943
6,705
921

2,317
6,762
518

Total

9,569

9,597

Directors
Directors’ emoluments during the year for both the Company and the Group were €nil (2018: €nil). There are no postemployment benefits accruing for the directors under defined benefit schemes and no directors are members of defined
contribution schemes. No directors exercised any share options during 2019 or 2018.
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Key management compensation
Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Key management compensation

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Salaries and other short-term benefits
Post employment benefits

5,045
92

4,548
-

Total

5,137

4,548

similar income

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Bank interest receivable
Net foreign exchange gains on senior bank loans
Other interest receivable

15
4,415
202

398
3,791
590

Total

4,632

4,779

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Senior bank loan interest
Amortisation of capitalised bank fees
Payment in kind loan interest
Net interest on post-employment benefits
Other interest payable

11,450
1,255
7,569
206
437

9,010
1,226
6,634
219
663

Total

20,917

17,752

8

9

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest payable and similar charges

similar expenses
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Tax on loss
2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Current tax on income for the year
Adjustments in respect of previous periods

87
(68)

-

Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year FT
Adjustments in respect of previous periods FT

958
(37)

5,483
(814)

Total current tax

940

4,669

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustments in respect of previous periods
Effect of changes in tax rates

(4,448)
(2,177)
75

(5,347)
606
1,179

Total deferred tax

(6,550)

(3,562)

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

(5,610)

1,107

Analysis of (credit)/charge in year
UK corporation tax

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year
The current tax credit for the year is lower (2018: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2018: 19%). The differences are explained below.
2019
2018
€’000
€’000
Total tax reconciliation
Loss on ordinary activities before tax

(50,249)

(37,835)

Loss multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax

(9,528)

(7,271)

Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax rate differences
Lower tax rates on overseas earnings
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods
Deferred assets not recognised
Foreign exchange and consolidation adjustments

3,288
38
(1,482)
(2,282)
5,757
(1,401)

851
1,482
1,974
(208)
8,317
(4,038)

Total tax (credit)/charge

(5,610)

1,107

Factors that may affect future current and total tax charges
The Company is incorporated in Jersey, where the tax rate is 0%, however it is tax resident in the UK. As such the tax
rate used in the tax reconciliation for the year is the UK corporation tax rate of 19%.
Changes to UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2020 on 17 March 2020. The
applicable main rate of tax is now 19% from 1 April 2020. On 22 December 2017, The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act was
enacted in the US which reduced the federal tax rate from 35% to 21% from 1 January 2018. The revised rates have been
used to value deferred tax assets and liabilities.
The tax rate differences between the subsidiaries is due mainly to higher (2018: higher) corporate tax rates in the US.
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Intangible
assets
g
Technology
platforms

Intangible
assets under
development

Total

Goodwill

Brands

Customer
relationships

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

109,591
-

79,900
-

85,900
-

14,840
7,259
(626)
28,595
-

30,581
11,670
(28,595)
(1,984)

320,812
18,929
(626)
(1,984)

Foreign currency
translation adjustment

-

-

-

927

1,684

2,611

At 31 December 2019

109,591

79,900

85,900

50,995

13,356

339,742

4,908
7,201
-

5,812
5,365
-

6,188
5,916
-

6,769
18,593
(626)

-

23,677
37,075
(626)

Foreign currency
translation adjustment

-

-

-

705

-

705

At 31 December 2019

12,109

11,177

12,104

25,441

-

60,831

Net book value
At 31 December 2019

97,482

68,723

73,796

25,554

13,356

278,911

At 31 December 2018

104,683

74,088

79,712

8,071

30,581

297,135

Group
2019
€’000
65,531

Group
2018
€’000
70,604

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Transfers: tangible assets

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2019
Charge for year
Disposals

The net book value of brands includes the following material items:
Williams Lea Tag brand

The directors consider each acquisition separately for the purpose of determining the amortisation period of any goodwill
that arises. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of AI Wertheimer Parentco UK Limited and its subsidiaries the Williams
Lea Tag Group, on 30 November 2017 is being amortised evenly over the directors’ estimate of its useful life of 20 years.
Goodwill arising on the 2018 acquisitions of Taylor James Group, THP Group and Popcorn Group is being amortised
over the directors' estimated useful life of 10 years for each acquisition.
Assessment of impairment of indicators
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there are any indicators that the carrying values of intangible assets
may be impaired. The Group is of the opinion that there were no impairment indicators as at 31 December 2019.
Company
The Company had no intangible assets at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.
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Tangible fixed assets
Buildings

Plant and
machinery

Computer
and office
equipment

Assets in the
course of
construction

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

Total
€’000

9,211
8,617
-

5,292
470
(152)
-

16,086
1,831
(463)
753
1,984

724
1
(753)
-

31,313
10,919
(615)
1,984

362

208

632

28

1,230

18,190

5,818

20,823

-

44,831

1,682
3,009
-

630
2,030
(142)

5,621
5,371
(1)

-

7,933
10,410
(143)

(126)

(48)

(425)

-

(599)

4,565

2,470

10,566

-

17,601

13,625

3,348

10,257

-

27,230

7,529

4,662

10,465

724

23,380

The net book amount of buildings comprises:

Group
2019
€’000

Group
2018
€’000

Short leasehold improvements

13,625

7,529

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Transfers: intangible assets
Foreign currency
translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019
Tangible fixed assetsDepreciation
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019
Charge for year
Disposals
Foreign currency
translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019
Tangible fixed assetsNet book value
Net book value
At 31 December 2019
At 31 December 2018

Company
The Company had no tangible assets at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.
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InvestmentsCost
Company

Shares in
Group
undertakings

Loans to
subsidiaries

Shares in
associates

Other
investments

Cost
1 January 2019 and at 31 December 2019
InvestmentsProvisions
Provisions
1 January 2019 and at 31 December 2019
InvestmentsNet book value
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 and at 31 December 2018

Shares in
subsidiary
undertaking
€’000
148,007

148,007

Details of the subsidiaries that make up the investments in Group entities are included in note 30.

14

Inventories

Group

Inventories

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for resale

946
7,076
890

1,145
9,992
1,192

Total

8,912

12,329

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the inventory and its carrying amount.
Company
The Company had no inventories at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.
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InvestmentsCost
Group
2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Corporation tax assets
Deferred tax assets (note 21)

192,294
20,574
49,737
5,281
16,353

173,492
17,092
44,846
3,537
13,149

Total

284,239

252,116

(1,958)

(1,179)

5,374

7,300

Debtors

Trade debtors are stated after deducting provisions for impairment of
Other debtors includes amounts falling due after more than one year of
Company

The Company had debtors of €96,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018: €97,000) which represented amounts owed by group
undertakings which are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

16

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group
2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Revolving credit facility (note 18)
Trade creditors
Corporation tax
Other taxation and social security costs
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

25,934
102,008
3,602
5,142
25,997
117,532

83,209
2,531
15,821
24,204
105,576

Total

280,215

231,341

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Company
The Company had no creditors (amounts falling due within one year) at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.

45

AI Wertheimer Holdings Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
17

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Senior bank loans (note 18)
Payment in kind loan (note 18)
Other creditors (LT)
Derivative financial instruments

2019
€’000
116,853
115,369
20,249
7,316

2018
€’000
114,846
107,800
15,602
2,915

Total

259,787

241,163

Other creditors
Other creditors includes contingent consideration payable on the Group's acquisitions.
Derivative financial instruments
The Group entered into a series of cross currency interest rate swaps on 29 May 2018 to receive interest at EURIBOR
and pay interest at fixed % rates. The swaps are based on a principal amount of €100m, the outstanding principal Euro
amount of the Group’s Euro senior bank loans, and matured on 29 February 2020. The instruments are used to hedge the
Group’s exposure to interest rate and currency movements on the senior bank loans. The hedging arrangement fixed the
total interest payable on the Euro senior bank loans to an average rate of 8.55%. Payments on both the senior loans and
the interest rate swaps are made quarterly until maturity. The fair value of the swaps is €7,316,000 (2018: €2,915,000).
During 2019, a loss of €4,401,000 (2018: €2,915,000) was recognised in the profit and loss account.

Company
The Company had no creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year) at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December
2018.
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Loans and other borrowings

Group
Loans and other borrowingsCapital
Capital
At 1 January 2019
Additional borrowings
Capitalised interest
Foreign currency translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019
Loans and other borrowingsIssue costs
Issue costs
At 1 January 2019
Amortisation for year
Foreign currency translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019
Loans and other borrowingsNet loans
Net loans and other borrowings
At 31 December 2019
At 31 December 2018

Revolving
credit facility
(note 16)
€'000

Senior bank
loans
(note 17)
€'000

Payment in
kind loan
(note 17)
€'000

€'000

25,401
533

119,642
931

107,800
7,569
-

227,442
25,401
7,569
1,464

25,934

120,573

115,369

261,876

-

4,796
(1,224)
148

-

4,796
(1,224)
148

-

3,720

-

3,720

25,934

116,853

115,369

258,156

-

114,846

107,800

222,646

Total

Senior bank loans
The Group’s financing facility with a syndicate of lenders includes senior loans of €120m, which are secured by a charge
over all of the Group’s subsidiaries. Interest is charged at a rate of EURIBOR (subject to a 1% floor when EURIBOR is less
than zero) plus a margin of 5%. All of the senior bank loans are repayable on 30 November 2022.
Payment in kind loan
The PIK loan is secured by a charge over all of the Group’s subsidiaries. Interest is charged at a rate of EURIBOR (subject
to a 0% floor when EURIBOR is less than zero) plus a scaled margin starting at 6.25% in year one and rising to 9.5% in
year 6. The PIK loan is repayable on 31 May 2023.
Revolving facility
The Group’s financing facility with a syndicate of lenders also includes a revolving facility of €30m, which is secured by a
charge over all of the Group’s subsidiaries. Interest is charged at a rate of EURIBOR (subject to a 1% floor when
EURIBOR is less than zero) plus a margin of 3%. Drawdowns on the facility during 2019 totalled €25.4m (2018: €12.4m)
and there were outstanding drawdowns as at 31 December 2019 of € 25.9m (2018: nil).
Company
The Company had no loans and other borrowings as at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.
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19 Post-employment benefits
Group
Defined contribution pension schemes
The Group operates a number of country-specific defined contribution plans for its employees. The pension charge for
the year represents contributions payable by the Group to the plans and amounted to €11,650,000 (2018: €12,924,000).
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions as at 31 December 2019 (2018: €nil). The plan’s assets are held
separately from the Group in independently administered funds.
Defined benefit schemes
The Group also operates a number of country-specific defined benefit schemes for its employees, in the UK, Germany,
France and India. Details of the material Group schemes are disclosed below.
a. UK defined benefit bridging pension scheme
The UK Group funds a bridging pension scheme for certain former employees of The Stationery Office Limited who are
made redundant between the ages of 50 and 60, with entitlements structured on age and service. The arrangement is
closed to further accrual. The scheme was valued by a qualified independent actuary at 31 December 2019, using the
assumptions below.
2019
2018
Valuation assumptions
2.25%
Long term inflation assumption
2.20%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
2.25%
2.20%
Discount rate
2.30%
1.70%
The long term inflation and pension increases assumptions are based on CPI.
The post-retirement mortality assumptions used are based on the S2PA CMI 2017 1.0% LTR and are as follows:
2019
Years
85.8
87.9

Life expectancy from age 60
Males currently aged 60
Female currently aged 60

2018
Years
86.4
88.4

b. The movements on the Group defined benefit pension scheme liabilities during the period, by country, were as
follows:
p (
)
At 1 January 2019
Additional amounts provided pensions
Amounts released unused pensions
Debited to other comprehensive income pensions
Interest cost on pension scheme liabilities
Amounts paid pensions
Foreign exchange adjustment pensions
At 31 December 2019

UK
€’000

Germany
€’000

India
€’000

Group
€’000

7,288
6
206
(524)
72

515
(56)
-

458
219
21

8,262
219
(56)
6
206
(524)
92

7,048

459

698

8,205

Company
The Company has no employees and therefore does not operate a pension scheme.
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Provisions for other liabilities

Group
Provisions for other liabilities
At 1 January 2019
Utilised during the year
Charge/(credit) to P&L for the year:
Additional amounts provided
Amounts released unused
Foreign exchange
translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019

Deferred tax
(Note 21)

Dilapidations
and onerous
leases

Onerous
contracts

Employee
benefits

Total

€’000
6,931
-

€’000
2,949
(309)

€’000
8,779
(5,575)

€’000
1,809
-

€’000
20,468
(5,884)

(1,192)
(1,486)

-

-

75
-

(1,117)
(1,486)

(1,202)

140

545

32

(485)

3,051

2,780

3,749

1,916

11,496

Dilapidations and onerous leases
As part of the Group’s property leasing arrangements there is an obligation to restore property to its original condition at
the end of the lease. The expected cost is charged to profit and loss at the start of the lease and deferred in its entirety.
This deferred expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The provision is expected to be
utilised between 2020 and 2028 as the leases terminate.
Where leasehold properties become vacant, the Group provides for all costs, net of anticipated income, to the end of the
lease or the anticipated date of the disposal or sublease. This provision relates to properties in London which were
vacated by Williams Lea Tag during the period before acquisition from 2015 to 2017 and are surplus to the Group’s
requirements. The provision is expected to be utilised over the remaining life of the related leases in 2020.
Onerous contracts
The Group regularly assesses its client and supplier contracts to ensure that the expected economic benefits exceed the
unavoidable costs of meeting the Group’s obligations under those contracts. Where costs to fulfil a contract are
determined as exceeding the economic benefits, an immediate charge is made to profit and loss. The provision is
expected to be utilised between 2020 and 2022.
Employee benefits
The Group operates a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for employees in the US. Employees decide how much
they wish to defer from receipt as income and select the funds in which those funds should be invested. There is no
employer investment involvement and no funding assumptions are required.
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Deferred tax

The elements of the deferred tax assets and provisions are as follows:
Group
Deferred taxAsset
Asset (note 15)
Accelerated capital allowances
Other timing differences
Tax losses
Post-employment benefits
Provisions for other liabilities
Deferred taxProvisions
Provisions (note 20)
Acquired intangible assets
Acquired
intangible
assets
€’000

At 1 January 2019
Credit to the profit and
loss for the year
Adjustments in respect of
previous periods
Charge to other
comprehensive income
Foreign exchange
translation adjustment
At 31 December 2019

Group

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

2,257
7,235
5,086
1,332
443

3,231
2,670
4,813
1,885
550

16,353

13,149

3,051

6,931

Tax losses

Capital
allowances

Postemployment
benefits

Other timing
differences

Total

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

€’000

(6,931)

4,813

3,231

1,885

3,220

6,218

1,192

(210)

(1,233)

(667)

4,336

3,418

1,486

433

259

-

-

2,178

-

-

-

56

-

56

1,202

50

-

58

122

1,432

(3,051)

5,086

2,257

1,332

7,678

13,302
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Financial instruments

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Trade debtors
Other debtors

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

192,294
20,574

173,492
17,092

Total

212,868

190,584

7,316

2,915

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Senior bank loan
Payment in kind loan
Trade creditors
Accruals
Other creditors

116,853
115,369
102,008
117,532
46,246

114,846
107,800
83,209
105,576
39,806

Total

498,008

451,237

Group

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

23

Called up share capital

Group and Company
Ordinary shares of €0.01 each

2019
Number 000s

2019
€’000

2018
Number 000s

2018
€’000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 January

14,810,706

148,107

14,810,706

148,107

At 31 December

14,810,706

148,107

14,810,706

148,107

The ordinary shares issued by the Company have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights. They do not confer
any rights of redemption.
24

Capital and other commitments

The Group had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods:
2019
2018
€’000
€’000
minimum lease payments
Not later than one year
18,795
20,079
Later than one year and not later than five years
50,876
35,967
Later than five years
33,527
16,783
Total

103,198

72,829

Company
The Company had no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2019 or at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the cash flow statement

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

Loss for the financial year
Adjustments for:
Tax on loss
Net interest expense

(44,639)

(38,942)

(5,610)
16,285

1,107
12,973

Operating loss
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Impairment of trade receivables
Post-employment benefits less payments
Other provisions less payments
Total

(33,964)
37,075
10,410
(1)
743
(361)
(5,809)
8,093

(24,862)
21,854
10,063
(110)
(10)
(667)
(4,612)
1,656

Working capital movements
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

4,170
(23,618)
26,787

(5,381)
3,534
15,734

15,432

15,543

Foreign
exchange
adjustment
€’000

At end of
year
€’000

Notes to the cash flow statement

Net cash from operating activities
Analysis of changes in net debt
At beginning
of year
€’000

Cash flow
€’000

Other noncash changes
€’000

Cash at bank and in hand

45,793

(345)

-

644

46,092

Cash and cash equivalents

45,793

(345)

-

644

46,092

Revolving credit facility
Senior bank loans (net of issue costs)
Payment in kind loan

(114,846)
(107,800)

(25,401)
-

(1,224)
(7,569)

(533)
(783)
-

(25,934)
(116,853)
(115,369)

Total

(176,853)

(25,746)

(8,793)

(672)

(212,064)
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Events after the reporting period

The COVID-19 outbreak has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of infections globally. Measures taken
by various governments to contain the virus have affected economic activity. The Group has taken a number of measures
to monitor and prevent the effects of the COVID-19 virus such as implementing safety and health measures for its people
and securing the supply of materials that are essential to the production process.
At this stage the impact of COVID-19 on the Group, its operations and its results is noteworthy, but the limited exposure
the Group has to sectors severely impacted by the virus (leisure/entertainment/travel/retail) is well mitigated by the
Group's operations in a number of other sectors that have been less impacted, such as pharmaceuticals and legal and
financial services. As such, there is less impact expected on the Group's top line.
The 2020 annual budget was re-planned at the end of the first quarter with the senior management team moving swiftly to
accelerate offshoring projects to deliver significant cost savings and improved liquidity. The impact of COVID-19 will
continue to be closely monitored, with the senior team being well placed to take any future necessary actions, both
quickly and decisively.
The Group will continue to follow the various national institute policies and advice and in parallel, will do its utmost to
continue operations in the best and safest way possible without jeopardizing the health of its people. Investment in
additional equipment and in remote working arrangements for employees has been made which will enable new flexible
working conditions to continue for as long as required.
27

Related party disclosures

Group and Company
Other than the transactions disclosed in note 7, Employees and directors, the Group’s related party transactions were with
wholly owned subsidiaries.
28

Controlling party

The immediate parent Company is AI Wertheimer (Luxembourg) S.à.r.l.
The directors regards the ultimate controlling party as GPE VIII funds managed by Advent International Corporation.
29 Non-controlling interests
Group

At 1 January
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to non controlling
interests
Total changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
a loss of control
Other transactions with non controlling interests
At 31 December

2019
€’000

2018
€’000

20,220

28,228

(8,346)

(8,207)

-

(4,595)
4,794

11,874

20,220
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings

The list of subsidiaries and other related undertakings is as follows:
Name
AI Wertheimer Parentco UK Limited

Address of the registered
office
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
381 Park Avenue South, 5th
Floor, New York, NY 10016,
USA
c/o Williams Lea Tag GmbH,
Menuhinstraße 6, 53113, Bonn,
Germany

Interest
83.15%

Nature of business
Holding company

97.37%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Lightbox Creative Services Limited
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
LLC Williams Lea
Office 12, 5 Botanicheskiy
Lane, 129090, Moscow, Russia
Popcorn Displays (Shenzhen) Co Ltd
DG761, Floor 7, Huajia Plaza,
Hubei Road, Dongmen
Avenue, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, P.R.China
Popcorn Displays Australia Pty Limited 2/60-62 Clarence St, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

100%

Pre-media production and
creative services
Non-trading
Dissolved October 2019
Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Non-trading

100%

Design and manufacture of
point of sale displays

Popcorn Displays USA Inc

100%

Design and manufacture of
point of sale displays

100%

Pre-media production and
creative services
Non-trading

AI Wertheimer Holdco UK Limited
AI Wertheimer Debtco UK Limited
AI Wertheimer Midco UK Limited
Wertheimer UK Limited
AI Wertheimer USA Inc
Wertheimer Germany GmbH

GoodsandServices.tv Limited

Smoke and Mirrors Productions
Limited
Tag Acquisitions Limited
Tag Belgium SA
Tag Creative Limited
Tag EquityCo Limited

381 Park Avenue South, 5th
Floor, New York NY 10016,
USA
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Rue Fourmois 15, 1050
Bruxelles, Belgium
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
c/o TMF (Cayman) Limited,
Second Floor, The Grand
Pavilion, Commercial Centre,
802 West Bay Road, PO Box
10338, Shedden Road, Grand
Cayman, KY-1003, Cayman
Islands

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Non-trading
Dissolved November 2019
Holding company
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings (continued)

Name
Tag Europe Limited
Tag Holdco Limited
Tag India Private Limited
Tag NewCo Limited
Tag Pac Limited
Tag Print Services Limited
Tag Response Limited
Tag Sao Paulo Servicos de Consult
Ltda.
Tag Storage Limited
Tag Topco Limited
Tag Worldwide (Shanghai) Co Ltd.

Tag Worldwide (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Tag Worldwide Australia PTY Ltd.

Tag Worldwide Group Limited
Tag Worldwide Holdings Limited
Tag Worldwide USA Inc
Taylor James Ltd
Taylor James Limited

Address of the registered
office
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
147, Tribhuvan Complex,
Ishwar Nagar, Mathura Road,
New Delhi, 110065, India
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Rua Wisard, no.305, Sala 52,
Edificio W305, Bairro Vila
Madalena, CEP 05434-080,
Sao Paulo, Brazil
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Unit 05-06, 6F, Tower I,
Shanghai Arch, 523 Lou Shan
Guan Road, Shanghai 200051,
P.R.China

Interest
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Nature of business
Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Holding company
Dissolved September 2019
Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Non-trading
Dissolved September 2019
Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Non-trading
Dissolved September 2019
Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%

Non-trading

100%

Holding company

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

77 Robinson Road, #11-03,
Robinson 77, Singapore,
068896, Singapore
Level 2, 60-62 Clarence Street,
Sydney, New South Wales
2000, Australia

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK
381 Park Avenue South, 5th
Floor, New York, NY 10016,
USA
141 West, 28th Street, 6th
Floor, New York NY 10001,
USA
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Holding company
Dissolved September 2019
Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%
100%
100%

Pre-media production and
creative services

100%

Pre-media production and
creative services
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings (continued)

Address of the registered
office
c/o Bunzel and Partner StbG
mbH, Kronenstraẞe 1,10119,
Berlin, Germany
Taylor James (Holdings) Limited
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
The Stationery Office Holdings Limited 55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
The Stationery Office Limited
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
The Stationery Office Pension and
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Trustees Limited
THP International Limited
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
Name
Taylor James GmbH

Interest
100%

Nature of business
Non-trading

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

100%
100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services
Holding company

100%

Advertising agency

TRAC - The Registered Agent
Company, 800 North State
Street Suite 402, Dover, Kent
DE, 19901, USA
349 Carlaw Avenue, Suite
#301, Toronto ON M4M 2TI,
Canada

100%

Advertising agency

100%

Advertising agency

TSO Holdings B Limited

1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK

100%

Holding company
Dissolved September 2019

Williams Lea (Beijing) Limited

Room 12011, 12/F Excel
Center, No.6 Wudinghou
Street, Xicheng District,
Beijing 100140, P.R.China

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea (Canada), Inc.

700-155 Av. University,
Toronto, Quebec M5H3B7,
Canada
4007 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
No. 44, Soi Sukhumvit 64,
Sukhumvit Road, Phra
Khanong-Tai Sub-district, Phra
Khanong District, Bangkok,
Thailand

100%

Non-trading

100%

Pre-media production and
creative services

c/o Severgnini Robiola
Grinberg Larrechea,
Reconquista 336, 2ndo Piso,
Buenos Aires C1003ABH,
Argentina

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

THP USA Inc

THP Inc

Williams Lea (Hong Kong) Limited

Williams Lea (No. 1) Limited
Williams Lea Tag (Thailand) Co., Ltd

Williams Lea Argentina S.A.
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings (continued)

Name
Williams Lea Asia Limited

Address of the registered
office
4007 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Interest
100%

Nature of business
Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Rua Wisard, no. 305, Sala 52,
Edificio 'W305', Bairro Vila
Madalena, Sao Paulo, CEP
05434-080, Brazil
44 Chipman Hill Suite 1000,
Saint John NB E2L 2A9,
Canada
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%

Holding company

100%

Non-trading

Williams Lea Finland Oy

c/o Revico Grant, Thornton Oy,
Paciusgatan 27, Helsinki,
00271, Finland

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

WLT France SAS

1 Place Boieldieu, 75002 Paris,
France

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Group Limited

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Holding company

100%

Holding company

Module 0308, D Block Tidel
Park, 4 Canal Bank Road,
Taramani, Chennai 600113,
India
55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

100%

Non-trading

Williams Lea Ireland Limited

Ground Floor, 8-9 Marino
Mart, Fairview, Clontarf,
Dublin 3, DO3 P590, Ireland

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Italia S.r.l.

Via di Ripetta 141, 00186
Roma, Italy

100%

Non-trading

Williams Lea Holdings Inc

381 Park Avenue South, 5th
Floor, New York, NY 10016,
USA

100%

Holding company

Williams Lea (US Acquisitions)
Limited

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Holding company

Williams Lea Inc

381 Park Avenue South, 5th
Floor, New York, NY 10016,
USA

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea (Brazil) Assessoria Em
Solucoes Empresariais Ltda.

Williams Lea (Canada) Holdings, Inc.

Williams Lea CCM Limited

Williams Lea Holdings Limited
Williams Lea India Private Limited

Williams Lea International Limited
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings (continued)

Name
Williams Lea Japan Limited

Address of the registered
office
Gotenyama Trust Tower, 9th
Floor, 4-7-35 Kitashinagawa,
Shinagawaku, Tokyo 1400001, Japan

Interest
100%

Nature of business
Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Limited

55 Wells Street, London, W1A
3AE, UK

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea México, S. de R.L. de
C.V.

Autopista Mexico-Queretaro
Km 34.5, Nave 1, Col. Rancho
San Isidro, Cuautitlán Izcalli,
C.P. 54740, Mexico

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Private Limited

8 Wilkie Road, #03-01 Wilkie
Edge, Singapore 228095,
Singapore

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Pty Limited

Level 2, 60-62 Clarence Street,
Sydney, New South Wales
2000, Australia

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea S.L.

c/o Arfa Oliver, Rambla
Catalunya, 62 ppal.1ª, 08007
Barcelona, Spain
c/o Lindebergs Grant Thornton
AB, Att: Lena Douhan, Box:
547, 61110 Nyköping, Sweden

100%

Non-trading

100%

Non-trading

Williams Lea Tag (Malaysia) Sdn
BHD.

Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A,
Vertical Business Suite,
Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8
Jalan Kerinchi, 59000 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Tag GmbH

Menuhinstraße 6, 53113, Bonn,
Germany

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

Williams Lea Ukraine LLC

23 A Yaroslaviv Val Street,
Kyiv 01034, Ukraine

100%

Non-trading

Williams Lea, s.r.o.

Mlynska 326/13, 110 00 Brno,
Czech Republic

100%

Non-trading

WLT Netherlands B.V.

Anchoragelaan 32, 1118LD
Schiphol, The Netherlands

100%

Marketing and communication
supply chain services

World Writers Limited

1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh,
Wokingham, RG41 5TS, UK

100%

Non-trading
Dissolved September 2019

Williams Lea Sweden AB

All of the above subsidiaries are included in the consolidation.
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